

First Year Seminar

ANNETTE YAUNEY AND NORA DUSSEAULT, HERKIMER COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE



First Year Seminar by Lumen Learning is licensed under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 International License, except where otherwise noted.

Contents

Part I. Course Information

1.	Welcome!	3
2.	Course Description	4
3.	Course Outline / Learning Objectives / Learning	5
	Outcomes	
4.	How Your Grade is Determined	7
5.	Course Expectations	9
6.	Course Schedule	12
7.	Your Next Steps	16
	Part II. Module 1: Introduction to College	
	Support Services	
•		40
8.	Module 1 Discussion Introduce Yourself!	19
9.	Campus Safety	20
10.	Counseling, Career, Advisement Center	21
11.	Internet Academy	22
12.	Library Services	23
13.	Post Your First Blog Entry	24
	Part III. Module 2: Self-Awareness Assessment	
14	Textbook Preface	27
15.	The Student Experience	31

16.	The Student Experience Assignment	37
17.	Practice, Practice	38
18.	Practice, Practice Assignment	44
19.	Why So Many Questions?	45
20.	Why So Many Questions Assignment	48
21.	Module 2 Blog Entry	49
	Part IV. Module 3: Health, Safety, and Well-Being	
22.	These Are the Best Years of Your Life	53
23.	These are the Best Years of Your Life Assignment	55
24.	With a Little Help from My Friends	56
25.	With a Little Help From My Friends Assignment	59
26.	Module 3 Blog Entry	60
	Part V. Module 4: Grit, Goal Setting, and	
	Motivation	
27.	Can You Listen to Yourself?	63
28.	Can You Listen to Yourself? Assignment	65
29.	Failure Is Not an Option	66
30.	Failure is Not an Option Assignment	70
31.	Time Is on Your Side	71
32.	Time Is on Your Side Assignment	76
33.	Learn What You Don't Want	77
34.	Learn What You Don't Want Assignment	81
35.	Module 4 Blog Entry	82
	Part VI. Module 5: Academics and Advisement	
36.	What Do You Enjoy Studying?	85

37.	What Do You Enjoy Studying? Assignment	88
38.	Something Was Different	89
39.	Something Was Different Assignment	91
40.	Module 5 Blog Entry	92
	Part VII. Module 6: Campus Involvement	
41.	Fighting for My Future Now	95
42.	Fighting for My Future Now Assignment	99
43.	Transferable	100
44.	Transferable Assignment	102
45.	Conclusion	103
46.	Module 6 Blog Entry	105
	Part VIII. First Year Student Seminar Blog	
47.	First Year Student Seminar Blog	109

PART I COURSE INFORMATION

1. Welcome!

Welcome to FS 100 - First Year Student Seminar

This course uses Generals Online (GO) for the presentation of content, class discussions, and submission of assignments.

This module (named "Course Information") contains the syllabus, first-day handouts, and course requirements. One of the most important documents is the Course Schedule. You should print the Course Schedule, keep it by your computer, and refer to it often so that you do not miss any of the course assignment deadlines.

You should start becoming familiar with the Generals Online (GO) navigation tools as soon as possible. If this is your first online course, you need to work through the Student Orientation by clicking the My Institution link at the top of the Generals Online screen. From there, click the Open SUNY Student Orientation on the left side of your screen.

Read each document in this Course Information module before you begin the assignments in Module One. If you have any questions, ask them by clicking the Messages link located within the Course Map (the black vertical bar on the left side of your screen). If you don't see the Course Map, move your cursor to the left side of the screen. A "Show Course Map" arrow will appear. Click on the arrow, and the Course Map will open.

This course runs from August 28, 2017, to October 2, 2017 (only five weeks).

Please remember, in an online seminar course you can only get out of the course what you put into it. So, let's make this a great course!

2. Course Description

This course is designed to empower the student to develop inner qualities that will help the student maximize his or her potential in college and in life through positive adjustment into the College. The student will be introduced to available college resources, academic and personal counseling, and methods to become a self-reliant and self-actualized individual. This course is required for all new fulltime students, and is most effective when taken in the first semester upon matriculation. This course is waived for students who are transferring in with 24 or more credits, and a minimum GPA of 2.0.

3. Course Outline / Learning Objectives / Learning Outcomes

COURSE OBJECTIVES

This course is designed to:

- Expose the student to the benefits and expectations of a Herkimer College education, and promote academic success.
- Help the student increase self-motivation, personal responsibility, and understanding of his or her role in being an informed participant in the educational process.
- 3. Create an environment that helps the student establish healthy relationships and support networks.

STUDENT LEARNING OUTCOMES

The student who successfully completes this course will be able to:

- 1. Demonstrate knowledge of Herkimer College institutional policies and mission statement.
- Demonstrate knowledge of support networks (Campus Safety, Counseling Center, Advisement Center, Career Services, Academic Support Center, Student Help Desk, Internet Academy, and Library Services).
- 3. Explain the role of self-efficacy, personal goals, and motivation in improving academic life.
- 4. Describe the behaviors and characteristics of an effective learner.

MAJOR DIVISIONS OF SUBJECT MATTER

- 1. Introduction to College Support Services
- 2. Self-Awareness Assessment
- 3. Health, Safety, and Well-Being
- 4. Grit, Goal Setting, and Motivation
- 5. Academics and Advisement
- 6. Campus Involvement

Course Assessment

Herkimer College is committed to modifying and improving the course learning activities based upon the feedback provided by the course assessment process. Students will have achieved the learning outcomes if they demonstrate mastery at the 70% level (minimum).

4. How Your Grade is Determined

Your final grade will be determined as follows:

- 50% Assignments
- 40% First Year Seminar Blog Entries
- 10% Module 1 Discussion

Grading Scale: Final grades will be reflected using the following grid:

A+	97 - 100
A	93 - 96
A-	90 - 92
B+	87 - 89
В	83 - 86
B-	80 - 82
C+	77 – 79
C	73 - 76
C-	70 - 72
D+	67 - 69
D	63 - 66
D-	60 - 62
F	0 - 59

Attendance: Students are expected to log in and participate at least three times in each module.

Assignments: These are assignments (essay in nature) which are contained within each module. The assignments are due by 11:55 pm on the closing date of each module. Late assignments will not be accepted or graded. This area of the course is worth 50% of the student's overall grade.

First Year Student Seminar Blog: Recent research in adult education has revealed that adult students remember best the knowledge that they can personally relate to, and find relevant to their own experiences. Toward this end, you are asked to post at least one blog entry for each module. You will be reflecting on what you have learned within the module and how it applies to your experiences. This area of the course is worth 40% of the student's overall grade.

Module 1 Discussion: Students are expected to participate in the Module 1 discussion forum by introducing themselves to the class and responding to other students in the class. This area of the course is worth 10% of the student's overall grade.

5. Course Expectations

My Expectations

This is a one-credit course. All activities for the course are online. If you were taking this course on campus, it would meet one hour each week for the entire semester. This online section is only five weeks long (August 28 through October 2). As a result, you should plan to log in and participate AT LEAST three days per week. Unless you participate in the course when you log on (by posting a document, discussion, or written assignment), your presence will not be documented. Just opening or reading documents in the course does not constitute a "Log on," as I will not be able to see any evidence of your presence unless you post something while you are online. Since there are no assigned meeting times, you need to be sure that you are checking your course schedule and logging in regularly. Because it is easy to neglect a fully online course, you should set specific days and times to work on the course (just as though you were taking an on campus course). For example, you might decide to work on the course every Monday, Wednesday, and Friday from 3 p.m. to 4 p.m. Keeping to a schedule such as this will help ensure you're successful in this course.

PRINT OUT the Course Schedule and keep it near your computer. You will need to refer to it often. Deadlines will be strictly enforced. You should make sure that you have thought about a "back up plan" in case you experience problems with your computer or your ISP (Internet Service Provider).

It is your responsibility to complete all the assignments by the deadline. Please read and follow ALL instructions. Students have lost points for not following instructions or meeting all components of a multi-part activity. All assignments will be submitted through this course site and NOT by fax, mail, or in person. In this way, there is a permanent record of all your assignments. I strongly recommend submitting assignments and post discussions before the 11:55 pm deadline to ensure the deadline is met.

Additional Policies

- Attendance Policy: Regular attendance (logging on and posting) is necessary and vital for successful completion of this course. Students must complete all assignments by the due dates for each module. A college-wide attendance policy allows an instructor to administratively withdraw a student who has missed 20% or more of the class meetings (page 12, Herkimer College Student Handbook). I do not participate in the administrative withdrawal process for this course. If you feel you are in jeopardy of not doing well in the course, please contact me, and I will let you know if I think you should withdraw from the course.
- Academic Dishonesty Policy: Plagiarism and cheating are violation of the Student Code of Conduct. The maintenance of academic honesty is the responsibility of both faculty and students. Any written assignment submitted by a student must be of original authorship. Representation of another's work as his/ her own shall constitute plagiarism. Any charge of plagiarism shall be substantiated by either direct correlation between the original and the alleged plagiarized copy of "clear and convincing evidence." Cheating shall be considered a violation and subject to the same penalties (page 18, HCCC Student Handbook).
- Disability Statement: Students with disabilities who are seeking academic accommodations should contact

- the Services for Students with Disabilities (SSD) office at 866-0300 Ext. 8331. The SSD office is located in the Academic Support Center in the library.
- Personal Counseling: Personal Counseling is available on campus. It is free and confidential. You can make an appointment to meet with a counselor by calling 315-574-4034 or you can make an appointment in person by going to RMCC 302. Anyone on campus with a mental health emergency should contact Campus Safety by calling 911.

6. Course Schedule

FS100 - Course Schedule / **Assignment Due Dates**

Print this schedule and keep it handy. Successful students will log on and participate in this course at least three times per module. If you fall behind, it is impossible to catch up because assignments submitted after a module ends will not be graded.

Learning Module	Start	End	Assignments Due (by 11:55 p.m. on the due date at the latest)
Module 1: Introduction to College Support Services	8/28/ 17	9/3/17	 Complete the module assignments (4 assignments) Participate in the Module 1 Discussion Forum Submit your first blog post in the First Year Seminar Blog
Module 2: Self- Awareness Assessment	9/4/	9/10/ 17	Read articles in Module 2 ("Textbook Preface," "The Student Experience," "Practice, Practice, Practice", and "Why So Many Questions?") Complete the module assignments associated with those articles (3 assignments) Post your second blog entry in the First Year Student Seminar Blog

Module 3: Health, Safety, and Well-Being	9/11/17	9/ 17/ 17	 Read the articles in Module 3 ("These are the Best Years of Your Life" and "With a Little Help From My Friends") Complete the module assignments associated with those articles (2 assignments) Post your third blog entry in the First Year Student Seminar Blog
Module 4: Grit, Goal Setting, and Motivation	9/18/	9/24/	Read the articles in Module 4 ("Can You Listen to Yourself," "Failure is Not an Option," "Time is on Your Side," and "Learn What You Don't Want") Complete the module assignments associated with those articles (4 assignments) Post your fourth blog entry in the First Year Student Seminar Blog

Module 5: Academics and Advisement	9/25/	9/ 27/ 17	Read the articles in Module 5 ("What Do You Enjoy Studying" and "Something Was Different") Complete the module assignments associated with those articles (2 assignments) Post your fifth blog entry
Module 6: Campus Involvement	9/28/	10/2/	in the First Year Student Seminar Blog • Read the articles in Module 6 ("Fighting for My Future Now" and "Transferable") • Complete the module assignments associated with those articles (2 assignments) • Post your sixth blog entry in the First Year Student
			Seminar Blog

7. Your Next Steps . . .

Make sure you have read all of the Course Information documents. Pay close attention to the Course Schedule. Start each module as soon as it "goes live" and finish all activities before each module end date.

Your job is to work through the six modules of this course over the next five weeks.

This course is not hard, but if you don't log on frequently and complete the assignments, it is easy to fall behind.

Let's get started . . .

Your next step is to click on the first module, which is an Introduction to College Support Services, and get started.

PART II MODULE 1: INTRODUCTION TO COLLEGE SUPPORT SERVICES

8. Module 1 Discussion -- Introduce Yourself!

Please introduce yourself to the class. Don't hold back or be shy, and remember to NOT fill it with purely academic information. Part of the learning in the online world is being able to get to know each other through our personal lives and activities. There is no right or wrong way to write this — it is your bio! Note: Please do use proper netiquette when posting anything within our course. That means, not using texting slang, all caps, emoticons. Always be polite and courteous in all course communications.

To post your bio Click on the title above.

Click on "Create Thread" button. Enter your bio and click "Submit." If you'd like, you can also post a picture of yourself.

In order to earn full credit for your participation in this discussion forum, you must post your introduction and reply to at least three other students' introductions.

9. Campus Safety

Campus safety is a concern on all college campuses. How campuses address the issues of campus crime is readily available. The Clery Act gives information on how well colleges and universities report crime on campus. The Act requires that all colleges have an alert system in place as well as crime reporting statistics. In order to answer the following questions, go to your campus website, search for campus safety, read the information provided.

What are the safety mechanisms on campus? Based on the information given on the college's website, what would you do in an emergency? How would you contact security? Please write in complete sentences in your own words. You may not just copy/ paste content from the website.

List five categories of crime that are tracked on your campus as a result of compliance with the Clery Act. In order to locate this information, log on to your college's website, and type "Clery Act Report" in the search box. You may have to scroll down within the report to find the actual statistics.

10. Counseling, Career, Advisement Center

Counseling (personal and career) is available on college campuses. In order to answer the following questions, go to your campus website, search for counseling and read the information provided. Please use complete sentences as you answer. You may not copy/paste content from the college's website.

In your own words, what personal counseling services does the counseling center offer you?

In your own words, what services does your college offer for career counseling?

Students are assigned an academic advisor upon matriculation to a program of study. Who is your academic advisor? What are the things your advisor can help you with?

11. Internet Academy

Go to the college's website and search for online learning. Read the information provided, and answer the following questions.

How many degree programs are offered fully online? What support services are available to online students? What phone number would you use to contact the Internet Academy if you have a question?

12. Library Services

In order to complete the following assignment, go to the college's website and search for "library." Read the information concerning the services available at the library.

What services does the library offer for online students? Include at least two services available. Use full sentences, and do not copy/ paste from the website. In addition, give the telephone number (with extension) and email address for the college's library.

13. Post Your First Blog Entry

Go to the Learning Modules area of the course. At the bottom of the list of learning modules, you will see a link to the First Year Seminar Blog. Go to the blog and create your first entry. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 1 entry.

PART III
MODULE 2:
SELF-AWARENESS
ASSESSMENT

14. Textbook Preface

"Success doesn't come to you...you go to it." This quote by Dr. Marva Collins sets the stage for the journey you are about to take. Your success, however you choose to define it, is waiting for you, and Foundations of Academic Success: Words of Wisdom (FAS: WoW) is your guide to your success. Some may believe that success looks like a straight and narrow line that connects the dots between where you are and where you are going, but the truth is that success looks more like a hot mess of twists and turns, curves and bumps, and hurdles and alternate pathways.

Putting this textbook together was challenging because there is so much to tell you as you embark on your college journey. I have worked with college students on academic success at a number of college campuses, and have hunted for the most effective and most affordable college student academic success textbook but could never find everything I wanted to teach in one book. So, I figured the answer was to write my own textbook!

Like any good research project, the outcome was not exactly what I expected. In addition to a host of true-to-life stories written by real people who have successfully navigated the journey through college, the first draft of the textbook included everything (and more) that the other similarly themed textbooks about college student academic success do. The chapters were framed by a slew of "How To" facts according to me (such as "how to efficiently take notes during a lecture and how to effectively use your preferred learning style to help you learn better") and research-based figures according to researchers in the field of college student academic success, such as rules like "For every hour in class, successful college-level work requires about two hours of out-of-class work: reading, writing, research, labs, discussion, field work, etc." or "A 15-credit course load is about equivalent to working a full-time job." Once the first draft was finished, I decided to test-drive my new

textbook with the students in my First Year Experience class to see what they thought. I figured, who better to give me feedback on the textbook than actual students who would use the textbook in class, right? I gave the first draft of the textbook (facts and figures and all) to my students to read, review, and reflect upon. It turned out that the pieces that my students learned the most from were the true-to-life stories. They either didn't read or barely glanced over the facts and figures, but provided very positive feedback (and even remembered) the words of wisdom from real people who have successfully navigated the journey through college.

I guess it makes sense; students love when real-life stories are infused into the activities and lessons. Plus, as a number of students told me, the facts and figures on topics such as note-taking and how many hours to study per week can be found by searching online and can vary per person. What really mattered to students were the real-life words of wisdom that you can't find online. Thus, Foundations of Academic Success: Words of Wisdom (FAS: WoW as I lovingly call it) emerged.

I share this story because my intended outcome (to be the author of the world's best open access college student academic success textbook) was not exactly what I expected it to be. The same is true of your journey through college, and you'll read more about that in the stories right here in FAS: WoW. You'll find that this is not your typical college textbook full of concrete facts and figures, nor does it tell you how to succeed. No textbook can truly do that for you—success is defined differently for everyone. The stories in FAS: WoW are relevant, relational, and reflective. The authors welcome you into their lives and offer ideas that ignite helpful discussions that will help succeed.

FAS: WoW introduces you to the various aspects of student and academic life on campus and prepares you to thrive as a successful college student (since there is a difference between a college student and a successful college student). Each section of FAS: WoW is framed by self-authored, true-to-life short stories from actual State University of New York (SUNY) students, employees, and alumni. You may even know some of the authors! The advice they share includes a variety of techniques to help you cope with the demands of college. The lessons learned are meant to enlarge your awareness of self with respect to your academic and personal goals and assist you to gain the necessary skills to succeed in college.

In the text, the authors tell stories about their own academic, personal, and life-career successes. When reading FAS: WoW, consider the following guiding questions:

- · How do you demonstrate college readiness through the use of effective study skills and campus resources?
- How do you apply basic technological and information management skills for academic and lifelong career development?
- How do you demonstrate the use of critical and creative thinking skills to solve problems and draw conclusions?
- How do you demonstrate basic awareness of self in connection with academic and personal goals?
- · How do you identify and demonstrate knowledge of the implications of choices related to wellness?
- How do you demonstrate basic knowledge of cultural diversity?

After you read each story, take the time to reflect on the lessons learned from your reading and answer the guiding questions as they will help you to connect the dots between being a college student and being a successful college student. Note your areas of strength and your areas of weakness, and develop a plan to turn your weaknesses into strengths.

I could go on and on (and on) about college student academic success, but what fun is the journey for you if I tell you everything now? You need to learn some stuff on your own, right? So, I will leave you to read and enjoy FAS: WoW with a list of tips that I share with college students as they embark on their journey to academic success:

- Early is on time, on time is late, and late is unacceptable!
- Get the book(s) and read the book(s).
- · Take notes in class and when reading for class.
- Know your professors (email, office location, office hours, etc.) and be familiar with what is in the course syllabus.
- Put your phone away in class.
- Emails need a salutation, a body, and a close.
- Don't write the way you might text—using abbreviations and clipped sentences.
- · Never academically advise yourself!
- Apply for scholarships...all of them!
- Speak it into existence and keep your eyes on the prize.

Enjoy the ride! Cheers,

TOM

Dr. Thomas C. Priester, tcpriester@genesee.edu

15. The Student Experience

Kristen Mruk

When thinking about college, what comes to mind? Perhaps stereotypical images or misconceptions of college life, a friend or sibling's story, or scenes from popular movies?



"The Student Experience" by Kristen Mruk

In popular culture, some movies depict college life as a party atmosphere in which students binge drink and waste their parents' money to have a good time without consequence. Films including National Lampoon's Animal House and Van Wilder as well as Accepted, to name a few, portray the student experience as a blatant disregard for education coupled with excessive drunken buffoonery. However, my party experience illustrates a side to college that is not generally in the limelight.

During my first weeks in college, I felt disconnected from the campus and feared that I would not make friends or find my niche. I was commuting from my family's home and wanted to do more on campus than just go to and from class. I was enrolled in a First-Year Experience (FYE) course that was intended to provide a framework for a successful undergraduate career and beyond. In the class, we learned about student support services on campus (tutoring, personal wellness, academic advisement, etc.) as well as personal success skills (time and financial management, values exploration, etc.).

Being a new student, and a commuter, I was overwhelmed by the amount of new information, new territory, campus culture, and unfamiliar processes. I asked my FYE instructor after class one day if there was something I could do to feel more connected to campus. She opened my eyes to a side of college that I was missing—this was my invitation to the *party*.

My FYE instructor promptly led me to her office, introduced me to the staff, and explained the variety of involvement opportunities available through her office. I was amazed that there was so much to do on campus! Because of that meeting, I decided to apply for a job in the Student Union working at the information desk. This position was a catalyst for all of the additional *parties* I would be invited to throughout my time as an undergraduate student. With so many possibilities, I had to be diligent in prioritizing my time and energy.

What My Friends Think I Do

Friends knew me to be much like the girl in the meme above. I was juggling extracurricular activities and two jobs all while maintaining a full course load. I had to be proactive and diligent to coordinate activities and assignments and make sure I had the time to do it all. Finding a system was a trial and error process, but ultimately I found a method that worked for me. I was an undergraduate student when apps didn't exist and Facebook was just becoming popular,

so my organizational system included a planner, a pen, and a lot of highlighters. Whatever that organizational system looks like for you does not matter as long as you use it.

There are a variety of organizational methods and tools you can use to stay on track with all aspects of your life as a student. Some of those are featured in the State University of New York (SUNY) blog: http://blog.suny.edu/tag/apps

What My Parents Think I Do

It may be difficult to discuss your studies and educational experience with a parent or someone that has a significant interest in your academic achievement. This was the case for me; I was the first kid in my house to enroll in college, and my parents were under the impression that grades would be sent home like they were in high school. During the New Student Orientation program, my Mom learned about FERPA (Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act) and what that meant for my grades. "FERPA gives parents certain rights with respect to their children's education records. These rights transfer to the student when he or she reaches the age of 18 or attends a school beyond the high school level." In essence, parents cannot access grades or other restricted academic information unless you provide it to them (http://www2.ed.gov/ policy/gen/guid/fpco/ferpa/index.html?src=ft).

I was fortunate enough to have my parents' financial support toward tuition, so they felt entitled to reviewing my grades at the end of each semester. I did not want to give them direct access to my grade report by filing a FERPA waiver, so after much deliberation, I agreed to share my grades once released at the semester's end. If their standards were not met, there would have to be a conversation about repercussions.

In the fall of my sophomore year I took my first online course—Introduction to Computers and Statistics. All of the lectures and assignments were available online at anytime and exams were administered in a computer lab on campus. I thought having the ability to view lectures on my own time would be more conducive to my schedule as I was becoming more involved on campus. For the first few weeks of classes I watched the lectures regularly and did the assignments on time. Slowly but surely I found myself prioritizing my time differently, ultimately putting my online class on the back burner, because (I told myself) the work could be done anytime! By the end of the semester I realized that I was going to fail the class. No amount of extra credit, crying, or pleading could save my grade; I had earned an F.

Seeing a failing grade on my transcript taught me two valuable lessons. First, I discovered that I needed the routine and accountability of an in-person class to ensure my participation in the material. Second, I was responsible for the grades I received. I probably could have come up with a million excuses for why I didn't watch the lectures or do the assignments, but the reality was I just didn't do it. I did not seek my professor's help during their office hours when I started to fall behind, I did not go to the tutoring center on campus to get extra help, and I did not reach out to my classmates to form study groups.

Although the F that I received will never disappear from my transcript, it is an important reminder of the gruesome conversation I had with my parents and the feeling of failure in the pit of my stomach. Needless to say, that was the only online course I took during my collegiate career, but it was absolutely worth the lessons learned.

What My Professors Hope I Do

Professors do care about how you are doing in their class; they genuinely want you to succeed, but they will give you the grade you

earn. There are people and resources on campus for you to utilize so you can earn the grade you want.

Your professors are one of those resources, and are perhaps the most important. Go see them during office hours, ask them questions about the material and get extra help if you need it. The caveat here is that you cannot wait until the last week of the semester to visit your professors to get help. Tears and pleading will not help you at the eleventh hour.

Another resource to utilize can be found in the campus learning center. I frequented my campus' writing center for assistance with papers and research projects. Initially, I was scared to be critiqued, thinking my work would be perceived as inadequate. The first time I took a paper there, I recall standing outside the door for about ten minutes thinking of an excuse not to go in. Thankfully I saw a classmate walk in and I followed suit. The experience was less dramatic than I imagined it to be; no one ripped my paper to shreds and told me that I would never graduate. Instead I sat with an upper-class student who coached me through some pointers and suggestions for improvement. Thanks to that first visit, I received an A- on the paper!

What I Would Like to Do

I thought I knew exactly what I wanted to do when I started college, but that changed three times by the time I graduated. Initially I started as an International Business major but ended up receiving a degree in Communication and continued on to graduate school. My greatest advice to you is to embrace feelings of uncertainty (if you have them) with regard to your academic, career, or life goals. Stop into the Career Services office on your campus to identify what it is that you really want to do when you graduate or to confirm your affinity to a career path. Make an appointment to see a counselor if you need to vent or get a new perspective. Do an internship in

your field; this can give you a first-hand impression of what your life might look like in that role.

When I chose International Business, I did not do so as an informed student. I enjoyed and excelled in my business courses in high school and I had hopes of traveling the world, so International Business seemed to fit the bill. Little did I know, the major required a lot of accounting and economics which, as it turned out, were not my forte. Thinking this is what I wanted, I wasted time pursuing a major I didn't enjoy and academic courses I struggled through.

So I took a different approach. I began speaking to the professionals around me that had jobs that appealed to me: Student Unions/Activities, Leadership, Orientation, Alumni, etc. I found out I could have a similar career, and I would enjoy the required studies along the way. Making that discovery provided direction and purpose in my major and extracurricular activities. I felt like everything was falling into place.

What I Actually Do

I would like to pause for a moment and ask you to consider why you are in college? Why did you choose your institution? Have you declared a major yet? Why or why not? What are your plans postgraduation? By frequently reflecting in this way, you can assess whether or not your behaviors, affiliations, and activities align with your goals.

What you actually do with your student experience is completely up to you. You are the only person who can dictate your collegiate fate. Remind yourself of the reasons why you are in college and make sure your time is spent on achieving your goals. There are resources and people on your campus available to help you. You have the control-use it wisely.

16. The Student Experience Assignment

Read the article "The Student Experience" by Kristen Mruk and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

What did Kristen consider a party to be while she attended college? What apps are available to help you organize your time? What did Kristen learn about what it takes to be successful when taking an online class? What do your professors hope you will do?

17. Practice, Practice, Practice

Dr. Kristine Duffy

Life in college will be like no other time in your life—I can guarantee you that! This is your time to explore who you are, who you want to become, and how you wish to play a part in this world. Don't squander this unique time in your life. I hope to share some thoughts that might help you avoid regrets when reflecting on your college years.

I want to be clear—there are many paths through college and we know that no one path is right for all. You may be starting at a community college, taking courses part-time, starting college again after an unsuccessful start, or returning to education after many years away, but no matter who you are or what path you've chosen, make the most of it.

I took the fairly traditional path. I graduated from high school and went directly to college (which was three hours away from home). Because I wasn't really sure what else I should do, I chose to be a business major by default. My parents thought it was a good route to take and would lead me to a good job (mainly to ensure I made some money and didn't live with them forever).

There are three things I learned quickly in college:

- 1. I had lived a very nice life, but in a very homogeneous environment.
- 2. There were people different from me.
- 3. Although I was a decent student, I had a ways to go to be a good student!

Learning to appreciate what you have is just as important as earning

As on exams and papers. I share this because part of college is preparing for life, not just a job. Ask yourself some questions:

- What's important to me and why?
- What do you know about other people's lives, beliefs, and passions?
- Are you confident in your abilities to study, listen and learn, take notes, and be a learner?

What's Important to Me and Why?

Is it only to make money to buy things? If so, do you truly believe that money makes everything better? Don't be fooled by that. Yes, money certainly makes life more comfortable, but it absolutely doesn't buy happiness. I had friends in college that came from a significant amount of money and they would have traded it all to have a family they can depend upon and love in their homes. Consider this very carefully as you dream of the life ahead of you.

What Do You Know about Other People's Lives, Beliefs, and Passions?

You are not the center of the world. You should be confident and proud of who you are, but be humble and be open to others' experiences and worldviews. Take classes that stretch you, maybe even make you uncomfortable. In the end these types of classes will test your assumptions, beliefs, and make you a more well-rounded and interesting person. The roommate or classmate that is different from you can teach you about yourself. Be open to this.

Are You Confident in Your Abilities to Study, Listen and Learn, Take Notes, and Be a Learner?

Remember, if college were easy, everyone would do it! You have full control and responsibility for your learning. Yes, your professors have the responsibility of teaching well and helping you learn. But they cannot and should not do the work for you. Part of college is learning to learn: learning to study, listen better, take notes, and most importantly asking for help when you need it.

In my own research I have learned that students are confronted with a paradoxical situation. On the one hand, students in high school are warned that college will be hard—the professors won't care if you do the work or not, and you need to do it on your own. However in reality, college professors and support professionals do care and will tell you to come and see them if you need help.

So what is a student to do? You may feel bad in class if you just aren't getting it and are embarrassed to ask for help. Stop that thought in its tracks! Colleges offer many opportunities for help and in almost all cases, for free! Professors offer office hours specifically to address students' questions and tutoring is available to help you do better, not to punish you for not getting it. Remember you are paying a substantial amount of money for your tuition; find out what resources you have and take advantage of them. Be a mature learner, take advantage of everything your college offers, and hold your head high for doing so. There is no shame in asking for help. I always compare it to a job. When you start out on any job there is usually some type of training to teach you how to do that job. College is no different. We are teaching you how to be a student—you've been practicing since Kindergarten, and doesn't end when you get to college.

Finally, here are some words of advice based on some of my regrets when I reflect on my college experience:

- 1. I didn't study abroad during my four years of college.
- 2. I didn't do any type of internship.
- 3. I didn't get involved with many clubs or organizations.
- 4. I didn't get involved with any type of research opportunities until graduate school.

Study Abroad

Whether it is a short-term experience (some are as short as three weeks) or a semester to a year-do it! This goes back to my point about understanding people different than you. The United States is a great nation, but we are not the only nation and our world is filled with amazing stories to share. One of my favorite quotes by Neale Walsh is: "Life begins at the end of your comfort zone" (2010). You will not miss much being gone from your college for a short period of time, and you will return from your adventure a changed person. How do I know this if I didn't study abroad myself? I know many who have and the end result is the same for all—no regrets, life changing moments, and better appreciation for the world we live in.

Internships

Going to college in the 80s was different than today. The job market was relatively strong and the push for an internship or co-op was not as strong. But if I had gotten some hands on experience and discovered my likes, dislikes, strengths, and weaknesses, I would had more direction for my career when I graduated. In addition, there is nothing more frustrating for a college graduate than to go on job interviews only to be told that you can't be hired because you have no real experience. So talk to your professors, academic advisors, counselors, and mentors about getting some internship experience while in school or during the summer. There are many companies that welcome interns, and you may find the direction you are seeking.

Clubs and Organizations

For years employers have been surveyed by colleges to ask them what type of skills they are seeking in college graduates. Although having discipline specific skills are important (in other words, the courses you take in your major), employers are very consistent in seeking out employees with what they call "soft skills," such as writing well, public speaking, getting along with others, and having leadership abilities. You'll develop these skills in your courses, but you can really hone and apply them by joining a club or organization on campus, where you will have opportunities to work with others, lead efforts, and have something to show for it-a campaign you ran, funds you raised, or an event you organized. Colleges offer many types of clubs to attract students in areas of interest. For example, if you are a business major, you could join the business club. More than likely the activities the club offers will allow you to meet business leaders, go on field trips to learn more about the business world, and meet people who have similar interests as yourself. I was a college athlete so my time was limited, and while I support athletics in college as an opportunity to continue your passion and to grow and learn, try to make time to join a special interest group. Take a leadership role in a group, and later, when you go on that job interview, talk about your leadership experience. The employer will be impressed and it may determine whether or not you get the job.

Research

Finally, develop your research skills. You may think that research is most important in the sciences and medicine. But research occurs in all fields of study, and much of what you do in college is research in some form. If you are a music major you may need to research how other musicians developed their talent, the history of genres, or new ways music is applied in our world. Problem solving through effective research and knowing how to test your ideas and hypotheses will make you a very valuable employee and citizen of your community. If your professor offers a chance to work on a special research project-sign up.

Question everything, and don't take the answers at face value. Question how people come to their conclusions, develop your own set of research questions, and be willing to dig to find the answers. This is not only important as a student but as an employee as well. Strive to be an engaged citizen in our world and don't believe what everyone tells you. An adult needs to make informed decisions to buy products, pay taxes, and vote for government leaders. Don't be complacent and put your life in the hands of others without fully researching the pros and cons-draw your own conclusions.

In conclusion, come to the classroom with an open mind and a willingness to exercise your right to take full advantage of all a college offers. Done correctly, college will be challenging and frustrating, and will test every part of you. Life will be the same way so use this time to practice, practice, practice.

Reference: Walsch, N. D. (2010). Neale Donald Walsch's little book of life: A user's manual. Charlottesville, VA: Hampton Roads.

18. Practice, Practice, Practice Assignment

Read the article "Practice, Practice, Practice" by Dr. Kristine Duffy and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

What is the paradoxical situation that Dr. Duffy refers to in the section "Are you Confident in your Abilities to Study, Listen and Learn, Take Notes, and Be a Learner"? How does your experience relate to this paradoxical situation? Do you ask for help when you need it? What are some of the ways you can get help while in college?

19. Why So Many Questions?

Fatima Rodriguez Johnson

I chose to attend a small liberal arts college. The campus was predominately white and was nestled in a wealthy suburb among beautiful trees and landscaped lawns. My stepfather and I pulled into the parking lot and followed the path to my residence hall. The looks we received from most of the families made me feel like everyone knew we didn't belong. But, he and I greeted all we encountered, smiling and saying, "Hello." Once I was unpacked and settled into my residence hall, he gave me a hug and said, "Good luck." I wasn't sure if he meant good luck with classes or good luck with meeting new friends, but I heard a weight in his voice. He was worried. Had he and my mother prepared me for what was ahead?

With excitement, I greeted my roommate who I had already met through the summer Higher Educational Opportunity Program (HEOP). She and I were very happy to see each other. After decorating and organizing our room, we set out to meet new people. We went to every room introducing ourselves. We were pretty sure no one would forget us; it would be hard to miss the only Black and Latina girls whose room was next to the pay phone (yes, in my day each floor shared one pay phone).

Everyone on our floor was nice and we often hung out in each other's rooms. And like some of you, we answered some of those annoying questions:

- Why does your perm make your hair straight when ours makes our hair curly?
- How did your hair grow so long (whenever we had weave braids)?
- Why don't you wash your hair everyday (the most intriguing

question of all)?

We were also asked questions that made us angry:

- Did you grow up with your father?
- Aren't you scared to take public transportation?
- Have you ever seen anyone get shot (because we both lived in the inner city)?

It was those questions that, depending on the day and what kind of mood we were in, made a fellow student either walk away with a better understanding of who we were as Black and Latina women or made a fellow student walk away red and confused. I guess that's why my stepfather said, "Good luck." He knew that I was living in a community where I would stand out—where I would have to explain who I was. Some days I was really good at answering those questions and some days I was not. I learned the questions were not the problem; it was not asking that was troubling.

My roommate and I put forth a lot of effort to fit in with the community-we spent time hanging out with our peers, we ate together almost every evening in the dining hall, and we participated in student organizations. We were invited to join the German Club, and were the only students of color there. In doing all these things we made ourselves approachable. Our peers became comfortable around us and trusted us.

Although my peers and I all had similar college stresses (tests, papers, projects, etc.) my roommate and I also had become a student resource for diversity. Not because we wanted to, but because we had too. There were very few students of color on campus, and I think students really wanted to learn about people different from themselves. It was a responsibility that we had accepted. The director of HEOP would often remind us that for many students, college was the first opportunity they had to ask these types of questions. He said we would learn to discern when people were really interested in learning about our differences or insulting us. If someone was interested in insulting us, there was no need to respond at all.

Although I transferred to another college at the end of my sophomore year, during those two years I learned a great deal about having honest conversations. Taking part in honest conversations challenged my notions of the world and how I viewed people from all walks of life (race, class, sexual orientation, ability, etc.). Those late nights studying or walks to the student center were when many of us listened to each other's stories.

My advice is to take time to examine your attitudes and perceptions of people different from yourself, put yourself in situations that will challenge your assumptions, and lastly, when you make a mistake do not get discouraged. Keep trying. It's easy to stay where we are comfortable. College is such a wonderful experience. Take it all in, and I am sure you will enjoy it!

20. Why So Many Questions Assignment

Read the article "Why So Many Questions?" by Fatima Rodriguez Johnson and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

The author recommends listening to each other's stories. Why does she recommend this? What does she hope that you will achieve by doing so?

21. Module 2 Blog Entry

Go to the First Year Student Seminar Blog (within the Learning Modules area of the course). Complete your second blog entry based on what you learned in Module 2. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 2 entry.

PART IV MODULE 3: HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELL-BEING

22. These Are the Best Years of Your Life

Sara Vacin

These are the best years of your life. I hope you've been told this a ridiculous amount of times and that you are finding this to be true! College provides an amazing opportunity to expand your mind, meet unique people you can deeply connect with, and discover new aspects of yourself. Being aware of this energy and taking full advantage of these opportunities can be life changing.

You learn a lot about yourself when living on your own for the first time or studying topics that are completely taboo at your home's kitchen table. When I transferred to a four-year institution, I found the strength to come out. Realizing I was gay led me to question where I belonged in the religion I was raised in and an enlightening journey ensued of exploring Buddhism, Native American beliefs, and even New Age mysticism. This process of questioning what I believed helped me to create a spiritual foundation that makes sense to me. I kept the best of what I was raised in and upgraded the rest!

I also discovered that the college I attended had amazing tools to help me be as healthy as possible. I used the free gym and knew the counseling center was there if anything became too tough. I also chose incredible electives (including Mountaineering and Modern Dance) that stretched my physical capabilities. Additionally, I made deep connections with my professors, many of whom remain friends. These smart, caring people validated my journey and were my safety net as I grew out of my old, comfortable self.

Another incredible lesson learned was the importance of balance. I couldn't party every night and neglect my schoolwork without

consequences. I figured out the hard way that I really did need sleep and I couldn't nourish my body on coffee and pizza alone. In a moment of brilliance, I also figured out that if I used time with my friends as a reward for finishing my work, I would study and complete assignments more efficiently. Fun can be a great motivator-try this; it works!

In college, the emphasis is often on the mind. Do yourself a favor and remember to also nourish your spirit and take care of your body. Leave college brighter, healthier, and with a new understanding of yourself. Try that yoga or nutrition class. Join that new club. Trade in that soda for water. Jump into that drum circle or improvisation group. Who knows what you will discover-it just may be greatness!

23. These are the Best Years of Your Life Assignment

Read the article "These Are the Best Years of Your Life" by Sara Vacin and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

Sara talked about the importance of balance. What did that mean to her? Research time management skills. List the top five time management skills you found. What is your plan of action to find your balance?

24. With a Little Help from My Friends

Paulo Fernandes

We often hear about the importance of relationships: a necessary aspect of integration in society. Unfortunately, we rarely follow that advice. Perhaps we live an excessively busy life or we already have a close group of friends and do not feel compelled to meet new people. I have come to learn through my time in college that neglecting to cultivate new relationships is detrimental to living a happy and successful life. I would like to offer this piece of advice: no matter how difficult it seems at first, always try to make new friends. College is not always easy. However, having friends makes it much easier. Friends are a vital part of your life that can expose you to new subjects, cultures, and experiences while giving you the opportunity to do the same for them.

At my college, there was a small space that the students called "the bat cave." It was by no means a first-class lounge, but it was a place where friends could help others better understand their course material. We gave it this peculiar nickname because it was our place to get together and conquer villains one after another. These were not your everyday super villains, however. Sometimes they were complicated homework assignments and other times they were difficult exams. No matter the challenge, someone was always willing to help. I went to the bat cave several times and every visit I learned something new. Professors and teaching assistants could not relate to us like our friends could. That made a difference, because nothing was better than being taught by a friend.

Friends are not only an essential support for your time in school, but also can be integral in helping realize post-college aspirations.

During a visit to New York City, I visited the offices of the company Spotify. After touring their facilities I had the opportunity to talk to some of the employees. One man I talked with was a senior employee who worked at Microsoft prior to joining Spotify's team. Our conversation stuck in my head because he gave a very striking piece of advice: make friends. It never truly occurred to me that the friends you make in college could impact your future in the workforce. They could be partners in potential business ventures or help you land your dream job. In any case, having strong connections with friends can undoubtedly make a major difference in your career.

The best part of making new friends, however, is trading life experiences, skills, and interests with them. For a year and a half before my final semester of college, I studied abroad in the United States. My family was concerned because typically, students search for first jobs prior to graduation. I, on the other hand, had no trepidations about going because I knew that I would have countless, exciting learning experiences. I can say today, without a doubt, that my trip was a great decision. I met incredible people, and through knowing them, I grew and changed. I also know that I was a positive feature in the lives of my new friends. The greatest thing that I learned was that meeting different people with different backgrounds, histories, perspectives, or even different musical tastes, inevitably changes you and lets you see the world in an entirely different way. You no longer see the world as simply a big, blue sphere with freezing winters or sizzling summers (although that certainly seems to be the case up North!), but as a place in which people like you live, learn, and love.

Going to college may seem hard, but it does not need to be. I have learned that the way I perceive my life as a student completely relies upon my relationships with my friends. They are not only the people that I like to spend time with, but also are essential in my growth and development as a human being. The pages in this book include insights from others just like you and me. They want to help you get through the common struggles of college with confidence and perseverance. Consider them your most recent new friends. I truly hope that this inspires you in your quest for a great future.

25. With a Little Help From My Friends Assignment

Read the article entitled "With a Little Help From My Friends" by Paulo Fernandes and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

How can friends help you in college? How did Paulo go about making connections with people on campus? What did you gain from reading this article? How do you plan on meeting new people through an online class?

26. Module 3 Blog Entry

Go to the First Year Student Seminar Blog (within the Learning Modules area of the course). Complete your third blog entry based on what you learned in Module 3. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 3 entry.

PART V MODULE 4: GRIT, GOAL SETTING, AND MOTIVATION

27. Can You Listen to Yourself?

Yuki Sasao

It is almost impossible to find time away from information sources like TV, phone, advertisements, or even your friends and family in this modern society. Can you put yourself in a place that has no information at all—you alone, just yourself? If not, you should try-finding this quiet mental space will let you to practice listening to yourself. It is a wonderful way to find out who you truly are. Our society has become so loud that it is very difficult to listen to your own voice and extremely easy to lose it.

I am an international student from a very small town in Japan, and I am the first one among my family members to study abroad. When I told people that I decided to come to the United States to study, every single one of them was shocked and gave me their advice. Some said Americans are very bossy and tend to look down on people. Some said I would not be able to find any jobs there.

It does not matter who you are and what type of circumstances you are in. You will get some comments and advice no matter what you do.

Was the advice people gave me accurate? I'm sorry, but mostly, no. People I met in the United States were nice, and the advice I received really depended on whether or not the person looked down on others. Am I struggling with finding a job? No. My major in accounting provides me more opportunities than I can take. Looking back on the comments from my friends and family, I am very grateful that I was able to see what I truly wanted and stick with my decision.

The reason I could tune out those negative voices was not

because I am lucky or intelligent. It is because I listened to myself-my own voice. However, this doesn't mean that I didn't listen to others. I considered what people said to me and I understood them. I just didn't agree with them, which was the most difficult part. In the process of building my own decisions, many pieces of advice actually helped me and I made some changes based on the advice from others combined with my own thoughts.

Why was I able to stick to my decision so tight and live the life I wanted? It's because I talked to myself and asked myself millions of questions.

"What do I want in my future?"

"Do I really need it or just want it?"

"Am I where I wanted to be? Yes? No? Why?"

"Where am I going?"

"What am I doing?"

"What would happen if I do this?"

"Why am I doing it?"

It is difficult, frustrating, and time-consuming to find your raw voice in this very noisy society, but in doing so you will get through life with minimal regret and confidence in who you are and what you are doing. Pull yourself away from the massive amount of information, talk to some people, understand them (never ignore them), and then talk with yourself. This is your life, and you cannot run away from yourself forever. You'd better learn how to listen to yourself and be able to stick with your own thoughts even after accepting what other say.

28. Can You Listen to Yourself? Assignment

Read the article "Can You Listen to Yourself" by Yuki Sasao and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

What challenges did Yuki face because she was an international student? What kind of a listener is she? How does she balance her thoughts and the thoughts of others?

29. Failure Is Not an Option

Nathan Wallace

In the movie Apollo 13, Ed Harris portrays NASA flight director Gene Kranz as he successfully guides the crew of a damaged spacecraft to safety. In a famous scene during which Kranz and his staff are attempting to overcome some extremely daunting challenges, Harris shouts, "Failure is not an option!" This singular statement perfectly articulated the determination of Kranz to bring the Apollo astronauts back to Earth.

This "failure is not an option" credo was perfect for the life and death situation that NASA was facing. Failure meant that the astronauts on Apollo 13 would never come home, and that outcome was unacceptable. Attending college, on the other hand, shouldn't be a life or death experience, though it sometimes might feel like one. Failure, though never the intended outcome, can and sometimes does happen. Sometimes failure manifests itself in election results for a student government post, in a test score, or even in a final grade.

Throughout my life I have had many failures. In high school I drove my parents and teachers crazy because of my lack of academic achievement. I even managed to get an F- in Spanish on my report card. When I told my mom that it was a typo she responded, "So you didn't get an F?" "No," I said, "I definitely earned the F, but there's no such thing as an F-." To this day I'm not so sure that my reply was accurate. I might have earned that minus after all.

My failures in high school led to only one acceptance from of all the colleges I applied to attend. Furthermore, I was not accepted to the school's main campus, but to their branch campus. During my first semester there my effort wasn't much better than in high school, but since my parents were now paying for my education I did enough work to avoid academic probation. It wasn't until my second semester that I found my niche as a Religious Studies major and started getting good grades, moved to the main campus, and eventually graduated with honors.

Since graduating from college, my career path has taken me into higher education as a Student Affairs administrator. This career has exposed me to many great theories regarding student success, and many of them gave me insight into my own college experience. But it was Stanford psychologist Carol Dweck who appeared to be thinking of me when she wrote the following about fixed mindsets in the introduction to her book titled Mindset: The New Psychology of Success:

Believing that your qualities are carved in stone-the fixed mindset-creates an urgency to prove yourself over and over. If you have only a certain amount of intelligence, a certain personality, and a certain moral character-well, then you'd better prove that you have a healthy dose of them. It simply wouldn't do to look or feel deficient in these most basic characteristics. (Dweck, 2006)

This statement was a revelation to me. I finally understood my problem throughout high school and even in college. I earned good grades because I liked Religious Studies but never really challenged myself inside or outside of the classroom. My problem was that I had a fixed mindset about academic success. I believed that a person is either smart or they're not, and nothing could be done to significantly change that. I also believed that I was one of the fortunate ones to be "gifted" with an abundance of intelligence.

One might think that having confidence in your intelligence is a whole lot better than thinking that you're stupid, but the result was the same. My fixed mindset was holding me back because it led to a paralyzing fear of failure. Since as far back as I could remember, my family, friends, and teachers were always telling me how smart I was, and I believed them. But that belief was a double-edged sword. High school and college offered many occasions when selfconfidence in my inherent intelligence could be threatened. If I fail on this test or in this course it means that I'm not the smart person I thought I was. If I fail, my family and friends will find out that they were wrong about me.

However, there was a way to avoid all of the risks of academic rigor. I could just not try. If I don't try I'll get bad marks on my report card, but those won't be true indicators of my intelligence. By not putting forth any effort, my intelligence would never be disproven. I would always be able to say to myself and others that, "I could do the work and be a straight A student, but I'm just not interested." Looking back on this time in my life, it is clear to me that this wasn't a conscious decision to save face. It was fear, not logic, which was guiding my behavior.

After reading Mindset I have made a conscious effort to identify and thwart any remaining fixed mindset thoughts that I continue to hold. Dweck's book acts as a manual for rooting out fixed mindset thoughts, because she explains that the idea of fixed mindsets is only half of her mindset theory. There is another kind of mindset, and she calls it growth mindset. Dweck writes that, "This growth mindset is based on the belief that your basic qualities are things you can cultivate through your efforts" (Dweck, 2006). Dweck goes on to explain that we can choose to have a growth mindset about any type of ability, whether it's math, art, athletics, or any other skill that one wishes to cultivate.

I put this theory to the test not long after reading the book. A few years ago I attended a meeting only to find out that it wasn't any ordinary meeting. During this meeting we would be brainstorming solutions to a specific problem. This was going to be a true brainstorming session, led by a facilitator trained in the science of soliciting uninhibited ideas from an audience. As soon as I heard the word brainstorming I froze. I have always hated brainstorming. I'm the type of person that likes to think things through two or three times before expressing an opinion. My fear of failing at this task in front of my coworkers paralyzed my mind. I couldn't think.

That's when it hit me. This was fixed mindset thinking. My belief in my brainstorming inadequacies was preventing me from even trying. So I flipped this thinking on its head and decided the best

way to improve my brainstorming abilities was to clear my mind and start firing out ideas. I gave it a shot, and though the ideas didn't come out at the prolific rate of some of my colleagues, I had never before had such a positive outcome and experience while brainstorming. Through this experience I found that I really could choose to have a growth mindset, and that this choice produces a greater chance of success. With a greater chance of success comes a smaller chance of failure.

Nevertheless, when it comes to academic success and success in all phases of life, failure is always an option. Though it can be painful, failure can lead to great learning and progress when a specific failure is analyzed through the lens of a growth mindset. By focusing more on effort than on outcomes anyone can learn and grow, regardless of their skill level. Therefore, to make the most of their time in college, students must seek out challenges that will stretch their abilities. These challenges can take many forms and they can occur in a variety of settings, both inside and outside of the classroom. When seeking out challenges there is always the possibility of agonizing defeat, but out of that defeat can be the seeds of great success in the future.

Reference: Dweck, C. (2006). Mindset: The new psychology of success. New York: Ballantine Books.

30. Failure is Not an Option Assignment

Read the article "Failure Is Not an Option" by Nathan Wallace and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

The article states "Though it can be painful, failure can lead to great learning and progress when a specific failure is analyzed through the lens of a growth mindset." Explain what the author means by this statement and relate it to your personal experiences.

31. Time Is on Your Side

Christopher L. Hockey

There I was, having just eaten dinner and realizing that I had less than twenty-four hours to go before my capstone paper was due for my History of Africa class. This paper was the only grade for the class and all I had done was some research. I still had thirty pages that needed to be written! How was I going to get this paper done?

I came to the realization that I was going to have to skip some classes and work through the night. I kept my roommate up with the click clack of the keyboard and worked through the night with breaks only to replenish the caffeine in my system. Morning came and I still had work to do.

I contacted my other professors letting them know that something came up and I wouldn't be in class. Thankfully, I was in good standing in my other classes and could afford to miss one class. I snuck in a twenty minute nap and kept working. I finally finished about thirty minutes before the deadline. Exhausted and not terribly proud of myself, I trudged my way to class to drop off the paper and committed to never working like this again. After all, there was a small likelihood that I would get a decent grade; I was hoping for just a C to keep my GPA respectable. I went back to my room and slept for a long time. Imagine my amazement when I received my grade for the paper (and ultimately the class) and there was an A- staring me back in the face! How could this be possible?

My experience illustrates a very important lesson. Best practices do not always yield the best results. Logic would tell us that to manage a thirty-page paper would require the student to spread out all the tasks over the semester and do a little bit of work over a long period of time as opposed to a lot of work over a short period of time. The problem is that time management is a personal thing. Everyone works differently and excels under different circumstances.

The important thing to remember about time management is that there is not one method. Everyone must find what works best for her or him. There are some strategies that have been used for years and others that are new. While there are multiple perspectives on how best to set personal and professional goals, there are three general themes that influence the development of personal time management plans: identifying priorities, managing time, and managing energy.

The concept of time management is actually personal management. Where you are going or what you are trying to accomplish is more important than how fast you get there. Personal management demands organizing and executing around priorities. One thing to watch out for on your college journey is something called time famine. Time famine is the feeling of having too much to do and not enough time to do it. This happens often to college students and without warning. This was certainly the case with my paper. I certainly felt overwhelmed with thirty pages to write and not a lot of time available to write it in. However, there's one really helpful aspect of time-you always know how much you have in a day. You know that in any given day, you have twenty-four hours to accomplish everything you need to do for that day. With that knowledge in hand it becomes an easy task to make smart choices when planning both the schedule for the day, as well as the energy needed to complete the tasks.

The objective of successful time management is to increase and optimize controllable time. Once you have a schedule made, don't change it unless something of some serious urgency comes up. However, while managing time is challenging enough, there's another concept out there about the management of your energy. Think of energy as money and time as what you'd like to buy. If you're too tired (or energy broke) to be productive, it's hard to accomplish (buy) everything on your schedule. Luckily, at the age of twenty-two, I had lots of energy and stamina to pull an all-nighter

and finish the paper. If I tried to do that today at thirty-five, I would be asleep on my keyboard after a few hours. In order to always have enough of time currency, it's important that you are physically energized, emotionally connected, and mentally focused on your purpose.

While an understanding of these general principles is essential for the development of sound time and energy management strategies, it is also important to focus on practical strategies that can be implemented to improve the college experience. The first recommendation is to know who you are and how you work. In this step, you need to examine all aspects of your current time management skills. Take a look at personal practices such as where you work, how you organize information and course materials, how current and future assignments and projects are prioritized, how commitments are balanced, and lastly, how you prevent burnout. Once you have taken stock in your current practices, you'll have a better idea of what you need to do to improve.

Even today, I try to space out large projects and assignments and find that I am not as focused or motivated. I struggle to complete the task and when I do, it never feels like I did it well. However, when I revert back to that practice of waiting until the last minute, I am focused, energized, and motivated and the results have been very positive. In my own doctoral program, I have begun assignments a little too close to the deadlines but they ultimately get completed and I continue to be amazed at the high marks I get back. What does that tell me? It tells me I thrive in high-pressure situations where I have to focus intensely on one thing and stay focused for a long period of time. Is that method for everyone? Certainly not, but it works for some and it may or may not work for you. You must examine your own work habits and practices and look back at times that you have done well and times you have done poorly and identify habits that led to those results.

The next strategy is to create a personal time management method to help prioritize projects and activities. Try to identify and eliminate activities that may detract from effectively balancing your roles and responsibilities. In any given day, what are the most important things that need to be completed? What can be eliminated from your schedule that provides you the time you need to be successful? I like to think of this as the "five-year-old plan." My five-year-old loves to play in the morning as her Mom and I are getting ready for work. The problem is that we need her to get ready for school, too. We put a plan in place that allows her to play in the morning, only after she is completely ready for school. You need time to play, have fun, and socialize, but it should not come at the expense of higher priority tasks.

The next recommendation is to focus on the process of energy management. Create goals focused on physical, mental, spiritual, and emotional renewal. These goals can include, but are not limited to: getting seven to eight hours of sleep a night, taking small breaks during work sessions, eating healthy, exercising regularly, drinking lots of water, having a positive attitude, and practicing positive self-talk. Anytime I know I have a big work task or school task to complete, I am in the mindset of energy conversation—my energy. I make sure to get a good night sleep, eat my Wheaties, and think good vibes. These habits allow me to complete projects in a way that works for me.

Lastly, set up a reward system. One of the great things about creating prioritized lists of things that need to be done is the sense of accomplishment when you cross that item off the list. Once you've identified your major goals and tasks, identify a reward for each of these goals that provides an even greater sense of accomplishment. The reward should be personal and should encourage you to continue your good habits. What are the things you love to do? Write them down next to the major tasks and learn to practice delayed gratification by only doing those things once you've crossed the item off.

In conclusion, practical and tangible strategies for time and energy management can be the key to success for any undertaking. While each concept related to time and energy management is unique and provides a starting point for you to begin to develop strong personal management skills, these methods and ideas are not one-size-fits-all, and you need to explore the strategies and discover which components of each best fit your lifestyle and circumstances. Through this exercise, you can develop a personal management plan that is best suited to your needs and goals.

32. Time Is on Your Side Assignment

Read the article "Time Is on Your Side" by Christopher L. Hockey and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

How do you relate to this article? Have you developed good time management skills in your educational background or are you more like the author in trying to get his capstone paper done? Explain.

33. Learn What You Don't Want

Jamie Edwards

For a long time, my plan had always been to be a kindergarten teacher. But when I began my undergraduate degree I fell into that ever-growing pool of college students who changed their major three times before graduation. I was swayed by family members, my peers, and the economy, but I eventually realized that I was investing my education in the wrong areas for the wrong reasons. It shouldn't just be about salaries and job security. I needed to find that personal attachment.

At eighteen, it's hard to see your entire life spread out before you. College may feel like a free-for-all at times, but the reality is that it's one of the most defining times of our lives. It should never be squandered. I started to imagine my life beyond college—what I found important and the type of lifestyle I wanted in the end. I started thinking about the classes that I was actually interested in-the ones that I looked forward to each week and arrived early to just so I could get a seat up front.

A turning point for me was when I took the advice of a campus mentor and enrolled in a career exploration course. I learned more about myself in that class than I had in my entire three years at college prior to taking it. It showed me that my passion was something I had always thought about but never thought about as a career. In high school, I could sit in the Guidance Office for hours on end. I enjoyed listening to others—hearing and helping people work through their struggles.

I had seen firsthand how detrimental the absence of career classes can be to someone's future. Through this realization and my participation in my career exploration class, I saw a viable future in the Higher Education Administration field. As I dove deeper, I was opened to an incredible amount of unique and diverse opportunities to work with students. My main approach was to get a taste anything to do with student services: I shadowed a career counselor in a career services office, attended graduate school fairs and informational sessions. discussed the Higher Education Administration Program with several staff at my college, and most importantly, I talked with my internship coordinator (my mentor). From there, I completed an internship in my prospective field, which gave me a wealth of insight and skills that directly related to my future career goals.

From where I sit now-my former personal and professional struggles in tow-I offer up some pieces of advice that were crucial to getting me where I am today. Whether you're an undecided major who is looking for guidance or a student with a clearly defined career path, I suggest the following:

- 1. Find a mentor—For me, everything began there. Without my mentor, I wouldn't have done any of the other items I'm about to suggest. Finding the right mentor is crucial. Look for someone who can complement your personality (typically someone who's the opposite of you). My advice would be to look beyond your direct supervisor for mentorship. It's important to create an open forum with your mentor, because there may be a conflict of interest as you discuss work issues and other job opportunities. Potential mentors to consider are an instructor on campus, your academic advisor, a professional currently working in your prospective field, someone you admire in your community, or anyone in your network of friends or family that you feel comfortable discussing your future goals with.
- 2. Enroll in a Career Exploration/Planning course, or something similar—Even if you do not see the effects of this course immediately (such as dramatically changing your major), you

will notice the impact down the road. Making educated career choices and learning job readiness skills will always pay off in the end. Through my career exploration class, I learned how to relate my personality and values to potential career fields. These self-assessments changed my entire thought process, and I see that influence daily. Beyond changing the way you think, the knowledge you gain about effective job search strategies is invaluable. Learning how to write purposeful résumés and cover letters, finding the right approach to the interview process, and recognizing your strengths and weaknesses are just a few of the benefits you can gain from these type of courses.

- 3. Complete a Job Shadow and/or Informational Interview—No amount of online research is going to give you the same experience as seeing a job at the front line. In a job shadow or an informational interview, you're able to explore options with no commitment and see how your in-class experience can carry over to a real world setting. Additionally, you're expanding your professional network by having that personal involvement. You never know how the connections you make might benefit you in the future. My only regret about job shadowing in college is that I didn't do it sooner.
- 4. Do an Internship—A main source of frustration for recent grads is the inability to secure an entry-level position without experience. "How do I get a job to gain experience when I can't get a job without experience?" This is how: do an internship or two! Most colleges even have a course where you can obtain credit for doing it! Not only will you earn credits towards graduation, but you'll gain the necessary experience to put on your résumé and discuss in future interviews. Having completed four internships throughout my college career, I can't say they were all great. However, I don't regret a single one. The first one showed me the type of field I didn't want to work in. The second confirmed that I was heading in the right direction with my career. My third and fourth internships

introduced me to completely different areas of higher education which broadened my knowledge and narrowed my search simultaneously.

My takeaway is that sometimes you have to learn what you don't want in order to find out what you do want. The more informed you are about career options through real life conversations and experiences, the better prepared you will be for your future and the more confident you will be in your career decisions. Always explore your options because even if you learn you hate it, at least you're one step close to finding what you love.

34. Learn What You Don't Want Assignment

Read the article "Learn What You Don't Want" by Jamie Edwards and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

Explain the title of the article. What specific things are suggested in order to "learn what you don't want"? Choose at least one of the suggestions and determine how you can implement it.

35. Module 4 Blog Entry

Go to the First Year Student Seminar Blog (within the Learning Modules area of the course). Complete your fourth blog entry based on what you learned in Module 4. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 4 entry.

PART VI MODULE 5: ACADEMICS AND ADVISEMENT

36. What Do You Enjoy Studying?

Dr. Patricia Munsch

There is a tremendous amount of stress placed on college students regarding their choice of major. Everyday, I meet with students regarding their concern about choosing right major; the path that will lead to a fantastic, high-paying position in a growth industry. There is a hope that one decision, your college major, will have a huge impact on the rest of your life.

Students shy away from subject areas they enjoy due to fear that such coursework will not lead to a job. I am disappointed in this approach. As a counselor I always ask—what do you enjoy studying? Based on this answer it is generally easy to choose a major or a family of majors. I recognize the incredible pressure to secure employment after graduation, but forcing yourself to choose a major that you may not have any actual interest in because a book or website mentioned the area of growth may not lead to the happiness you predict.

Working in a college setting I have the opportunity to work with students through all walks of life, and I do believe based on my experience, that choosing a major because it is listed as a growth area alone is not a good idea. Use your time in college to explore all areas of interest and utilize your campus resources to help you make connections between your joy in a subject matter and the potential career paths. Realize that for most people, in most careers, the undergraduate major does not lead to a linear career path.

As an undergraduate student I majored in Political Science, an area that I had an interest in, but I added minors in Sociology and Women's Studies as my educational pursuits broadened. Today, as a counselor, I look back on my coursework with happy memories of exploring new ideas, critically analyzing my own assumptions, and developing an appreciation of social and behavioral sciences. So to impart my wisdom in regards to a student's college major, I will always ask, what do you enjoy studying?

Once you have determined what you enjoy studying, the real work begins. Students need to seek out academic advisement. Academic advisement means many different things; it can include course selection, course completion for graduation, mapping coursework to graduation, developing opportunities within your major and mentorship.

As a student I utilized a faculty member in my department for semester course selection, and I also went to the department chairperson to organize two different internships to explore different career paths. In addition, I sought mentorship from club advisors as I questioned my career path and future goals. In my mind I had a team of people providing me support and guidance, and as a result I had a great college experience and an easy transition from school to work.

I recommend to all students that I meet with to create their own team. As a counselor I can certainly be a part of their team, but I should not be the only resource. Connect with faculty in your department or in your favorite subject. Seek out internships as you think about the transition from college to workplace. Find mentors through faculty, club advisors, or college staff. We all want to see you succeed and are happy to be a part of your journey.

As a counselor I am always shocked when students do not understand what courses they need to take, what grade point average they need to maintain, and what requirements they must fulfill in order to reach their goal-graduation! Understand that as a college student it is your responsibility to read your college catalog and meet all of the requirements for graduation from your college. I always suggest that students, starting in their first semester, outline or map out all of the courses they need to take in order to graduate. Of course you may change your mind along the way, but by setting out your plan to graduation you are forcing yourself to learn what is required of you.

I do this exercise in my classes and it is by far the most frustrating for students. They want to live in the now and they don't want to worry about next semester or next year. However, for many students that I see, the consequence of this decision is a second semester senior year filled with courses that the student avoided during all the previous semesters. If you purposefully outline each semester and the coursework for each you can balance your schedule, understand your curriculum, and feel confident that you will reach your goal.

37. What Do You Enjoy Studying? Assignment

Read the article "What Do You Enjoy Studying?" by Dr. Patricia Munsch and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

The author recommends that each student create his/her own team. What does she mean by this? Who is on your team? If you don't currently have a team, how can you develop one? Who can you choose?

38. Something Was Different

Jacqueline Tiermini

I have earned both a bachelor's and a master's degree and I have nearly twenty years of teaching experience. Would you ever guess that I contemplated not going to college at all? I originally thought about going to Beauty School and becoming a Cosmetologist. It was to me, honestly the easy way out since I was sick of all the drama after high school. The thought of college seemed overwhelming. Why did I really need to have a college degree when all I ever wanted was to get married and be a stay-at-home mom? My friends weren't going to college either, so I often wondered if going would complicate our friendship.

I decided to go anyway, and it did separate us a bit. While I was writing a ten-page paper for my summer class in Genetics and Heredity, my friends were swimming in my pool. They also had the chance to buy new cars and new clothes and to go on vacations. I just went to school, driving my used Nissan Sentra, without much more than gas money and a few extra bucks. Again, why was I doing this? It would have been easier to just do what my friends were doing.

Little by little, semesters went by and I graduated with my bachelor's degree in Education. I started substitute teaching immediately and within six months I was offered a full-time job. Just like that, I had more money and all kinds of new opportunities and I could now consider a new car or going on vacation just like my friends. At that point, I decided to continue my education and get my master's degree. Yes, it was a lot of hard work again, and yes, my friends wondered why I wanted to go back again, but I knew then that this was the best choice for me. The challenge wasn't knowing where I wanted my career to go, but rather overcoming the pull to

settle into a lifestyle or career because it was easy, not because it was what I wanted.

By the time I graduated with my master's degree I realized that something was different. For all the years that I felt behind or unable to keep up with what my friends had, I was suddenly leaps and bounds ahead of them career-wise. I now had two degrees, a fulltime teaching job, and a plan to keep my career moving forward. I was able to do all of the things that they had done all those years and more. None of them had careers, just jobs. None of them had long-term plans. None of them were as satisfied with their choices any longer and a few of them even mentioned that they were jealous of my opportunity to attend college.

Don't be fooled. Being a college student is a lot of work and, like me, most students have questioned what they are doing and why they are doing it. However, the rewards certainly outweigh all of the obstacles. I used to hear, "Attending college will make you a wellrounded person" or "It sets you apart from those that do not attend," yet it never felt true at the time. Eventually though, you will come to a point where you realize those quotes are true and you will be on your way to earning that degree!

39. Something Was Different Assignment

Read the article "Something Was Different" by Jacqueliine Tiermini and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

Why did Jacqueline not want to go to college in the first place? How much of a struggle was it for Jacqueline to get her bachelor's degree? What was Jacqueline's reward for getting her degree? What is Jacqueline's advice to students?

40. Module 5 Blog Entry

Go to the First Year Student Seminar Blog (within the Learning Modules area of the course). Complete your fifth blog entry based on what you learned in Module 5. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 5 entry.

PART VII MODULE 6: CAMPUS **INVOLVEMENT**

41. Fighting for My Future Now

Amie Bernstein

Instead of completing high school, I elected to obtain my GED due to an anxiety disorder that kept me from being successful in the traditional school setting. At sixteen years old, I thought I had it figured out. I was going to go to college before my high school class graduated, and I would be ahead of the curve. But I learned quickly that college coursework is tremendously different from high school. College requires a level of self-discipline that I had not yet developed. More importantly, college requires a substantial amount of courage and confidence that I was sorely lacking.

In the spring of 2005, I attempted to take my first two college classes. I withdrew from both within the first month. I made excuses as to why I could not complete the semester. I told people that it was the professor's fault for making the information too difficult or teaching the material too quickly. I told other people that the readings were too easy and I was wasting my time. The truth was that I was afraid to try. I was afraid that if I tried, the result would be failure.

After eight consecutive semesters, I had completed only five classes successfully, accrued seventeen withdrawals, and got three failing grades. In those four years, I was placed on academic probation five times because I neglected to withdraw from classes and just received a failing grade instead. I made the decision to find an entry-level job in an office so I could grow with a company to be successful instead of getting an education. Through a little bit of searching, I found what I was looking for. At the time, it seemed like the perfect place to be, and I was excited to start.

I was working at an HVAC company in the office part-time as a general office assistant. My duties included answering phones and taking messages. There wasn't a great amount of room for growth, however it had a better salary than any of the previous jobs I had at fast food restaurants and retail stores. I worked at the company for nearly two years before I asked for a raise. It took a month of contemplation, and the owner finally agreed to give me a raise. I waited for my next paycheck, excited to see the increase in pay even though I knew it wasn't going to be very big.

The raise meant that I had accomplished something, but when I received my next paycheck, the pay rate wasn't changed and it felt like I had accomplished nothing at all. When I questioned the owner about it, he said he forgot and he would change it for the next pay period. This same routine went on for two months until I made a big decision. The moment I received my paycheck, three months from when I originally asked for a raise, I walked out of the office and drove directly to the registrar on my local community college. I registered for classes again, but this time I promised myself it would be different; I was fighting for my future now.

I then started taking classes again in the fall of 2011 going parttime. I attended every class and studied as much as I could. I took every opportunity for extra credit assignments. I didn't stop to doubt myself. I just kept my thoughts focused on finishing the assignments-one at a time. Before I knew it, I had successfully completed the semester. I continued to take classes and try my best—taking every challenge head-on.

A year later, in the fall of 2012, I received a letter in the mail inviting me to join the honor society. Up until this point in my life I had let my anxiety disorder rule my life. This was proof that I was finally on the right track. I reluctantly joined and decided to continue to further push myself outside my comfort zone to challenge my anxiety.

Not only did I start going to meetings, but I participated in every event that the honor society had to offer. That included bake sales, volunteering for nonprofit organizations, and volunteering for the college itself. The opportunities came at me from every angle.

I then started to be recognized by the college. In addition to being recognized for my good grades, I was also recognized for my involvement with campus activities through the honor society. I received both a Distinguished Student Award from my college and a SUNY Chancellor's Award for Student Excellence. I joined everything I could after that, including two more honor societies, one for English and the other for Psychology. I enrolled in a noncredit bearing leadership class on campus so I could have even more experience that would help me with my future goals. I even went on to run for a regional officer position in my honor society and won. I was able to travel to California, Florida, and Missouri, all because of campus involvement in the honor society.

I still have anxiety, but now I am able to cope with it without letting it dictate my every move. I have confidence. I always thought that because I wasn't that cookie cutter all-American student, my opportunities would be limited, but getting involved on campus opened so many doors for me. I learned so much about what it was to be a leader. I learned what it meant to be part of a team and the value in building relationships. I learned what it meant to be engaged both inside and outside of the classroom.

I developed a deeper sense of who I am through my campus involvement. Sometimes I think about what would have happened if I never had taken that step and joined the honor society or never attended any meetings. Honestly, I probably would have been okay. I would have been steadily gliding through my education. I would have shown up to class, taken notes, then gone home and studied. I would have probably then gone on and found a decent job with a regular amount of satisfaction. But who wants an okay, decent, or regular life? I don't; I need more. I want to love what I do and enjoy every moment I can.

Maybe the honor society isn't something that you are interested in and that's okay. Do something different and learn about all of the opportunities that your campus offers and pick one to try out. Make your life more than run of the mill—and start now.

42. Fighting for My Future Now Assignment

Read the article "Fighting for My Future Now" by Amie Bernstein and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

What was the final issue that made Amie decide to go back to school? Once Amie had the determination to go back to college. What action did she take to ensure she had a successful semester? How did getting into the honor society further Amie's success?

43. Transferable

Vicki L. Brown

I was supposed to be a teacher. Growing up, I had a classroom in the basement. I had a chalkboard, chalk, desks, textbooks, homework assignments, pens, pencils, paper—you name it, I had it! My brother and sister called me "Miss Brown." All I ever wanted to be was an elementary school teacher—until I went to college.

As an elementary education major in college, I participated in a variety of classes—classes on literacy, math and science, philosophies of teaching, child development theory, principles of education, foundations of classroom behavior, and a whole list of others. We learned how to write a lesson plan, manage a classroom, how to set up a classroom, and much, much more.

In addition to my studies, I got involved in campus life. I joined the swimming and diving team, participated in campus activities, and joined clubs. I served as a captain of the swimming and diving team, became an Orientation Leader and a Resident Assistant, and completely immersed myself in the college experience. It was through these co-curricular activities that I was introduced to the world of higher education and a potentially new career choice for myself.

Through my academic and co-curricular activities, I gained valuable knowledge from all those I came in contact with—my peers, professors, Residence Hall Directors, and many college administrators. They encouraged me to explore what it was that I *really* wanted to do with my life. The more I got involved in my college experience, the more I learned about myself: what I'm good at, what I'm not good at, what I wanted to, and what I didn't want to do.

As I started to sort through my options, I continued my studies,

receiving both a bachelor's degree and a master's degree in elementary education. While attending graduate school, I also worked as a Graduate Residence Hall Director. It was during that time when I finally made the decision to pursue a career in higher education administration/student affairs administration and leave my plans of being an elementary school teacher behind.

The decision wasn't as difficult as one might think. When some listen to my story, I often hear "you've wasted all that time and money..." But, the truth is I gained valuable, lifelong skills from the people I met, the classes I took, the jobs I've had, and the activities I involved myself in. Each and every skill you acquire is transferable. This is perhaps the best lesson I've ever learned in college.

The countless lesson plans I had to write for my education classes and student teaching have helped me prepare practice plans as the head coach for the men's and women's swimming and diving team. The skills I learned while planning programs and activities for my residents as a Resident Assistant, Hall Director, and Area Coordinator have helped me plan campus events as the Director of Student Activities in the Center for Student Leadership & Involvement. The classroom management techniques I learned in college have helped me to manage my office, staff, team, committees, etc. The communication and development theories I've learned have taught me how to have meaningful conversations with others and how best to meet their needs.

Each and every skill you learn throughout your academic, personal, and professional career are valuable and transferable. Do not let your college degree define who you are but rather, let the knowledge and skills you've acquired define who you are.

44. Transferable Assignment

Read the article "Transferable" by Vicki L. Brown and then thoroughly answer the following essay question(s). You may not copy/paste from the article. Your answer(s) should be in your own words and in complete sentences.

Vicki had a plan of what she wanted to do with her life. What was her plan? What activities did Vicki participate in while in college that led her to making the decision to choose a different career from her major? List two skills Vicki learned from her education that she uses in her job.

45. Conclusion

In the text, the authors told true-to-life stories about their own academic, personal, and life-career successes. When reading FAS: WoW, you explored the following guiding questions:

- How do you demonstrate college readiness through the use of effective study skills and campus resources?
- How do you apply basic technological and information management skills for academic and lifelong career development?
- How do you demonstrate the use of critical and creative thinking skills to solve problems and draw conclusions?
- How do you demonstrate basic awareness of self in connection with academic and personal goals?
- How do you identify and demonstrate knowledge of the implications of choices related to wellness?
- How do you demonstrate basic knowledge of cultural diversity?

Now that you've read FAS: WoW, it's time to pay it forward by composing your own Words of Wisdom story to share with college students of the future. Reflect on the lessons learned during your own college experience this term and use the guiding questions to develop a true-to-life story that can help other college students connect the dots between being a college student and being a successful college student. Submit your story to be considered in the next edition of Foundations of Academic Success: Words of Wisdom by emailing your name, institution, and a draft of your short story to opensunyfas@gmail.com. Submissions will be reviewed as they are received, and you will be contacted directly if your submission is reviewed and selected for publication.

The options for textbooks focusing on college student success in college are overwhelming; many textbooks exist at varying levels

of rigor and cost (some well over \$100). The FAS: WoW series of textbooks provides college students open access textbooks that are student-centered and readable (dare I even say enjoyable). FAS: WoW supports the open access textbook philosophy to help students reduce the cost of attending colleges and universities.

46. Module 6 Blog Entry

Go to the First Year Student Seminar Blog (within the Learning Modules area of the course). Complete your sixth blog entry based on what you learned in Module 6. Specific directions are provided in that location concerning your Module 6 entry.

PART VIII FIRST YEAR STUDENT SEMINAR BLOG

47. First Year Student Seminar Blog

We want you to have a successful first semester. Whether you are just out of high school or have been away from school for a number of years, the First Year Student Seminar course is designed to introduce you to various aspects of student life. Blogging your College Seminar course gives you time to reflect on what you have learned. There are six modules in the course, and you are required to complete at least one blog entry for each module. Each module's blog entry must have a minimum of 300 words. The word count is provided in the lower right corner of the blog entry textbox. Please use complete sentences, correct grammar, capitalization, and spelling. Your blog can be read by all students in the course. You are not required to comment on other students' blog entries, but you may if you wish to do so. Your blog grade for each module is based on your own blog entry, not on your comments to other students' blogs.

• Module 1 is an introduction to college support services. You will research available resources on the college's website and blog your findings. Your blog entry for Module 1 should answer the following questions: What information do you find useful? Did you learn anything about the college that you were not aware of? After reading the course syllabus for each of your other courses, do you think you will need to access any of the services covered in this module (for example, the library for research, the student help desk, career advisement, etc.)?

To create your first post, click on the Create Blog Entry button. For the title, use Module 1. Type your Blog Entry, and then click the Post Entry button.

You can then edit your blog post (if necessary) by scrolling

down (under the blog directions). You will see your blog post with the title Module 1. To the right of the title, you will see a chevron (a circle with a check mark in it). Click the chevron and select Edit. When finished editing, click the Post Entry button.

 Your blog entries for Modules 2 through 6 will consist of personal reflections on the individual stories you will read in each module. To help you organize your thoughts, consider the following questions: What information do you find useful from the module? What are the areas you need to work on? What are your areas of strength and your areas of weakness? What plan have you developed to use some of the information you have been given? How do you relate to the articles you have read?

You need to create a new blog entry for each module. Therefore, when you are ready for Module 2, click the Create Blog Entry button and enter the title Module 2. You will need to follow the same process for your blog entry for each module.